

**MARKETING RESEARCH ASSOCIATION**  
**NEW YORK/NORTHEAST CHAPTER, INC.**

**BYLAWS**

**ARTICLE I - NAME**

**Section 1. Name.** The name of this organization shall be the Marketing Research Association, New York/Northeast Chapter, Inc., (hereinafter “the Chapter”), a not-for-profit corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of New York. For publicity/advertising purposes only, the chapter may be referred to as “The Greater New York (GNY) Chapter”.

**Section 2. Offices.** The Chapter shall maintain an office within the State of New York, and at such other places within or without the State of New York, as the Board of Directors may determine from time to time.

**ARTICLE II - PURPOSES**

**Section 1. Purpose.** The purpose of the New York Chapter shall be the same as those of the Marketing Research Association, Inc. (hereafter “MRA”), and as stated in the Articles of Incorporation of the Chapter. As used in these bylaws, “marketing research” includes opinion and survey research.

**ARTICLE III - MEMBERS**

**Section 1. Classification.**

Classification of membership shall be consistent with the National Bylaws.

**Section 2. Admission.**

A person or company may become a member by:

- submitting an application on a form prescribed by the Association and by
- meeting all other qualifications set forth by the National Bylaws.

**Section 3. Dues and Assessments.**

Dues and Assessments shall be consistent with the National Bylaws.

**Section 4. Suspension or Expulsion..** Suspension and Expulsion shall be consistent with National Bylaws..

**Section 5. Resignation.** A member may withdraw from the Chapter by sending written notice of the resignation to the President which shall be effective upon receipt after fulfilling all obligations to the Chapter.

**Section 6. Chapter Units.** The Board of Directors may establish administrative and geographic classifications from time to time as the Board of Directors determines necessary in furthering the purposes of the Chapter.

**ARTICLE IV - VOTING**

**Section 1. Voting.** Individual (and Company) members in good standing are entitled to vote on matters presented for a vote of the membership. A majority vote of the members in good standing entitled to vote present in person or proxy shall be sufficient to act.

**Section 2. Ballot and Vote.** Shall be consistent with National Bylaws and the incorporation laws of the state that the Chapter is incorporated in.

**Section 3. Proxy Voting.** Proxy voting is permitted, subject to such uniform procedures and rules as the Board of Directors may establish.

## **ARTICLE V - MEETINGS**

**Section 1. Annual Meeting.** The Board of Directors shall determine the date and location of the Annual Meeting of the Membership, within or without the State of New York. The members shall be given written notice of the Annual Meeting not less than thirty days in advance.

**Section 2. Special Meetings.** Special meetings of the membership, or classes thereof, may be called by the President, or by a majority of the Board of Directors, or by fifteen (15) percent of members in good standing entitled to vote. The members shall be given written notice of a special meeting not less than fourteen days in advance. The notice of a special meeting shall state the business to be transacted at the meeting.

**Section 3. Quorum.** Fifteen (15) percent of members in good standing entitled to vote shall constitute a quorum at any meeting of the Chapter.

## **ARTICLE VI - BOARD OF DIRECTORS**

**Section 1. Composition.** The Board of Directors shall consist of the officers and 4 Directors at Large.

**Section 2. Powers.** The Board of Directors shall have supervision, control and direction of the affairs of the Chapter, shall determine its policies or changes within the limits of these bylaws, shall actively prosecute the Chapter's purposes, and shall have discretion in the disbursement of its funds. The Board of Directors shall adopt such rules and procedures for the conduct of its business and the business of the Chapter as the Board deems advisable, and may appoint such agents as it considers necessary.

**Section 3. Qualifications.**

- a. Any voting member of the Chapter in good standing for at least one year shall be eligible for election as a Director. The board reserves the right, under special circumstances, to make eligible members with less than one year in good standing.
- b. A member shall not be a candidate for the Board of Directors or for office if his/her election would result in two (2) or more representatives of the same company serving as Directors or Officers at the same time.

**Section 4. Term of Office.** Directors at Large shall hold office for two years or until their successors are elected, and their term of office shall begin at their time of installation.

**Section 5. Meetings.**

- a. The Board of Directors of the Chapter shall meet at such times as it may determine, but not less than four times each year.
- b. Special Meetings of the Board of Directors may be called by the President or not less than three directors upon notice to members of the Board at least seven (7) days before the meeting date.
- c. A majority of the Board membership shall constitute a quorum. In the absence of the President and the President-Elect, the quorum present may choose a Chairman for the meeting. If a quorum is not present, a lesser number may adjourn the meeting to a day not more than ten (10) days later.
- d. Each member of the Board shall have one vote and in case of a tie vote, the President or person presiding shall have an additional vote.
- e. The Board of Directors may meet by telephone conference so long as each Director may hear the other Directors participating in the conference call.
- f. Any action required or permitted to be taken by the Board of Directors may be taken without a meeting if all members of the Board consent in writing to the adoption of a resolution authorizing the

action. The resolution and the written consents thereto by the members of the Board shall be filed with the minutes of the proceedings of the Board.

**Section 6. Vacancies.** Whenever any vacancy occurs in the Board of Directors, it shall be filled by a majority vote of the remaining members of the Board. The person so elected shall hold office until a successor is elected at the next election.

**Section 7. Removal.** A member of the Board may be removed for good cause by a two-thirds vote of the Board Members present at a special meeting called specifically for that purpose.

## **ARTICLE VII - OFFICERS**

**Section 1. Officers.** The officers of this Chapter shall be a President, President-Elect, Secretary, Treasurer, and Immediate Past President.

**Section 2. Qualifications.** Any member in good standing for at least one year shall be eligible for election to any officer position (President, President-Elect, Secretary, Treasurer, and Immediate Past President).

**Section 3. Term of Office.** Officers, with the exception of the Treasurer and Secretary, shall hold office for one year or until their successors are elected and qualified. The Treasurer shall hold office for two years or until a successor is elected and qualified. Officers shall take their offices at their time of installation. The terms of Treasurer and Secretary shall be staggered so as to facilitate continuity and record-keeping responsibilities.

**Section 4. Duties of the President.** The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board of Directors and all membership meetings, shall be the chief executive officer of the Chapter, and shall be responsible for the conduct of the Chapter's affairs, subject,

however, to the approval of the Board of Directors and the bylaws of the Chapter. The President shall assign duties and responsibilities to the officers, and shall appoint the committees set forth in these bylaws or that the President may from time to time consider necessary, designating the chairman of each committee.

**Section 5. Duties of the President-Elect.** The duties of the President-Elect shall be those which the President or the Board of Directors shall assign. The President-Elect shall assume the duties of the President in case of the President's resignation, absence, or inability to act. The President-Elect shall succeed to the office of the presidency upon the expiration of the President's term of office.

**Section 6. Duties of the Secretary.** The Secretary shall be the custodian of all records, excluding financial records, of the Chapter and shall keep minutes of the meetings of the membership and of the Board of Directors. The Secretary shall prepare and serve all notices of meetings of the Board of Directors and of the Chapter, and shall perform such other duties as the President or Board of Directors may assign.

**Section 7. Duties of the Treasurer.** The Treasurer shall keep a complete and accurate account of all receipts and disbursements by the Chapter and shall deposit monies belonging to the Chapter's bank accounts. The Treasurer shall direct the preparation of the Chapter's annual budget and, alone or with any person designated by the Board, shall disburse the funds of the Chapter upon order of the Board of Directors. At each Annual Meeting of the Chapter and at such other times as the Board of Directors may instruct, the Treasurer, on behalf of the Chapter Board, shall render a statement of the financial condition of the Chapter .

**Section 9. Duties of the Immediate Past President.** The Immediate Past President shall perform such duties as may be assigned by the Board of Directors.

**Section 10. Removal.** An Officer may be removed for good cause by a two-thirds vote of the Board Members present at a special meeting called specifically for that purpose.

**Section 11. Vacancies.** Vacancies in any office shall be filled for the unexpired portion of the term by a majority vote of the Board of Directors at its next regular meeting or at a special meeting called for that purpose.

## **ARTICLE VIII - COMMITTEES**

**Section 1. Standing Committees.** The Standing Committees of the Chapter shall be the:

- a. Executive Committee, consisting of the officers of the Chapter. The Executive Committee may exercise the powers of the Board of Directors when the Board is not in session, reporting to the Board at its next meeting any actions taken. The Executive Committee shall meet at the call of the President or on the written request of any three members, at such time and place as designated by the President.
- b. Nominating Committee, as provided in Article IX.

**Section 2. Other Committees.** The President may appoint and dissolve other committees, subject to approval by the Board of Directors.

## **ARTICLE IX - NOMINATIONS AND ELECTIONS**

**Section 1. Appointment.** The President-Elect shall serve as the Nominating Committee Chairperson. The President-Elect, subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, shall form a Nominating Committee.

**Section 2. Notification.** The Nominating Committee shall be published to the members of the Chapter not less than 30 days before nominees are announced. The Nominating Committee shall solicit recommendations for officer and director candidates and recommend this slate of candidates to the members not less than 30 days before elections are held.

**Section 3. Procedures.** The procedures governing the operations of the Nominating Committee shall be established by the Board of Directors.

**Section 4. Nominations.** The Nominating Committee shall report its recommendations to the members eligible to vote. Additional nominations may be made by any member with the endorsement of five other members and presented in writing to the Chairperson of the Nominating Committee no later than 15 days after nominees are announced.

**Section 5. Contested Elections.** The Board of Directors shall adopt and publish procedures to govern contested elections.

**Section 6. Plurality.** The person receiving a plurality of the votes cast shall be declared the winner for each position.

## **ARTICLE X - FINANCIAL MATTERS**

**Section 1. Fiscal Year.** The Fiscal year of the Chapter shall be June 1<sup>st</sup> to May 31<sup>st</sup>.

**Section 2. Bonding.** Any person entrusted with the handling of funds or property of the Chapter shall, at the discretion of the Board of Directors, furnish at the expense of the Chapter a fidelity bond approved by the Board of Directors in such sum as the Board of Directors shall prescribe.

**Section 3. Third-Party Analysis.** The Chapter may, at the discretion of the Board of Directors, have its financial records analyzed by a third party annually.

**Section 4. Compensation.** Elected officers and directors shall not receive a salary for performance of their duties, but may be reimbursed for their expenses. Officers and directors performing services on behalf of the Chapter in addition to their duties as

officers and directors may be compensated for such services, subject to disclosure to and approval by the Board of Directors.

## **ARTICLE XI - RELATIONS WITH MARKETING RESEARCH ASSOCIATION**

**Section 1. Bylaws.** The Bylaws of the Chapter may not be contrary to those of the Marketing Research Association. Should any provision of the of the bylaws of the Chapter need interpretation or construction, it shall be so established in a manner consistent with the provisions and intent of the Marketing Research Association's bylaws, as determined by the Board of Directors of the Marketing Research Association.

**Section 2. Limitation.** The Chapter may not bind, contract for or take any position on behalf of the Marketing Research Association without the express approval of the President or Board of Directors of the Marketing Research Association.

**Section 3. Policies.** The Chapter shall follow the policies and procedures of the Marketing Research Association, including, but not limited to the antitrust directives of the Marketing Research Association, and shall provide timely notice to the Executive Director of the Marketing Research Association of activities undertaken by the Chapter.

## **ARTICLE XII - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS**

**Section 1. Power to Indemnify.** The Chapter shall have the power to indemnify any person who is or was a director, officer, committee member, employee or agent of the Chapter to the full extent permitted by law.

**Section 2. Liability Insurance.** The Chapter may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer, committee member, employee or agent of the Chapter against any liability asserted against him or her and incurred by him or her in any such capacity, or arising out of his or her status as such, whether or not the Chapter would have the power to indemnify him or her against such liability.

**Section 3. Use of Funds and Dissolution.** The Chapter shall use its funds only to accomplish the objectives and purposes specified in these bylaws, and no part of its funds shall inure, or be distributed to the members of the Chapter. On dissolution of the Chapter, any funds remaining shall be distributed to the MRA National organization.

### **ARTICLE XIII - AMENDMENTS**

These bylaws may be amended or repealed in whole or in part by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the voting members present, in person or by proxy, at a Special or Annual meeting. Notice of the proposed amendments or deletions must be given in the announcement of the Special or Annual meeting. Alternatively, these bylaws may be amended or repealed in whole or in part, by two-thirds (2/3) vote of the voting members' voting in accordance with the provisions in Article IV, Section 2.